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	STATE OF TENNESSEE
DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN’S SER VICES
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS # 35910-02030
AMENDMENT # ONE
FOR STATEWIDE THERAPEUTIC FAMILY PRESERVATION AND REUNIFICATION SERVICES 


DATE:  November 15, 2016

RFP # 35910-02030 IS AMENDED AS FOLLOWS:


1. This RFP Schedule of Events updates and confirms scheduled RFP dates.  Any event, time, or date containing revised or new text is highlighted.

	EVENT

	TIME 
(central time zone)
	DATE


	1. RFP Issued
	
	October 21, 2016

	2. Disability Accommodation Request Deadline
	2:00 p.m.
	October 26, 2016

	3. Notice of Intent to Respond Deadline
	2:00 p.m.
	October 27, 2016

	4. Written “Questions & Comments” Deadline
	2:00 p.m.
	November 3, 2016

	5. State Response to Written “Questions & Comments”
	
	November 15, 2016

	6. Response Deadline 
	2:00 p.m.
	November 22, 2016

	7. State Completion of Technical Response Evaluations 
	
	December 7 2016

	8. State Opening & Scoring of Cost Proposals 
	2:00 p.m.
	December 8, 2016

	9. State Notice of Intent to Award Released and
RFP Files Opened for Public Inspection
	2:00 p.m.
	December 13, 2016

	10. End of Open File Period
	
	December 20, 2016

	11. State sends contract to Contractor for signature 
	
	December 21, 2016

	12. Contractor Signature Deadline
	2:00 p.m.
	December 23, 2016



2. State responses to questions and comments in the table below amend and clarify this RFP.

Any restatement of RFP text in the Question/Comment column shall NOT be construed as a change in the actual wording of the RFP document.

	QUESTION / COMMENT
	STATE RESPONSE

	1 
	B.17 of the RFP requirements:  This requirement indicates that 2 references must be obtained from non-state customers for similar goods/services sought under this RFP.  Currently, our agency only provides similar services to the state under contracts with DCS.  We also provide services to families and individuals utilizing other funding (contracts/grants) primarily through state contracts, however, have very little private funding.  Therefore, it will be difficult for us to find letters of reference from customers with comparable services and contract size to provide reference letters.  Does this preclude us from applying for this RFP?
	The lack of references from private entities doesn’t preclude your agency from applying for this service.  However, the impact on the score of Section B will be determined by each member of the Review Team.  

	2 
	What has been the average monthly service volume in the region in the past year in terms of total monthly hours billed for each program?
	The total number of hours per category and per month is unavailable.  

	3 
	What were the results from the last RFP for each section?
	
	REGION
	VENDOR

	Davidson
	Camelot Care Centers, Inc.

	East
	Omni Community Health, Inc.

	Knox
	LifeCare-Sequel Care of TN

	Mid-Cumberland
	New Vision, Inc.

	Northeast
	Families Free, Inc.

	Partial Northwest
	LifeCare-Sequel Care of TN

	Shelby
	Camelot Care Centers, Inc.

	Smoky Mountain
	Omni Community Health, Inc.

	South Central
	Camelot Care Centers, Inc.

	Southwest
	Health Connect America, Inc.

	Tennessee Valley
	LifeCare Sequel Care of TN

	Upper Cumberland
	Health Connect America, Inc.




	4 
	Is it a requirement for the contractor to provide all services listed in the RFP (Family Support Services, Family Visitation Services, Family Violence Intervention Services, and Court Testimony), or would DCS consider a proposal for just one of the listed services?
	Yes, all services must be provided.  Please see 3.3. Response & Respondent Prohibitions of the RFP.

	5 
	In the last year, how many families have been served in each service category, per region? Can you provide an anticipated number of families served per day, in each service category (per region)?
	See Attachment A of this RFP amendment.  The anticipated number of families in each service category is unavailable. 

	6 
	Are these services currently provided in all regions in TN?
	Yes, all services are provided in every region with the exception of Upper Cumberland (UC).  Upper Cumberland doesn’t use Court Reporting or the Family Satisfaction Survey Tool.  All contracts procured through this RFP will have the same services.

	7 
	Are families able to receive more than one of the listed services at any given time? 
	Yes, they are allowed to receive more than one of the listed services at one time.

	8 
	If families are able to receive more than one service at a time, is the same staff expected to deliver all services to that family and can more than one service be provided during a single contact with the family?
	Families can be served by different staff, although it would be best practice to have the same staff person conduct all services if qualified to do so.  More than one service can be provided at the same time, but you cannot bill for that time more than once.  

	9 
	In attachment 6.6, the RFP details the staffing qualifications; according to the RFP, supervisors must hold a Master’s degree and be licensed, and can only supervise 5-6 non-licensed staff. Would DCS consider proposals for an alternative staffing structure?
	Proposals for an alternate staffing structure will not be accepted.  Please see 3.3. Response & Respondent Prohibitions of the RFP.  

	10 
	The RFP states that the respondent must provide a cost proposal; can DCS provide the average hourly cost that it pays providers under the current contracts for these services?
	See Attachment B of this RFP amendment.

	11 
	What are the current DCS contracted provider rates for each of the 12 regions for each of the RFP service categories listed?
	See Attachment B of this RFP amendment.

	12 
	Is it permissible to include the Section A.6. proof of education documents, and the Section B.13 resumes for the personnel roster, in the Appendix so they will not count towards the maximum 125 page Technical Response length?
	Yes, it is permissible to include the response to those items in the appendix.  However, the Respondent isn’t expected to submit hundreds of pages of documents to satisfy the requirement particularly duplication of items e.g. a copy of the wall license and a copy of a pocket license for the same person.  See 3.1.1.2. of the RFP.  Since licensure is a requirement in the Pro Forma Contract of the Scope of Service, the language in A.6. is amended (see this amendment for the new language).  B.13. will allow clarity of the licenses submitted for A.6.  The Respondent should not submit information that isn’t requested in A.6. or B.13. e.g. transcripts, diplomas, awards, etc.

	13 
	If a Respondent is proposing multiple regions with different service category rates for different regions, should all of these regional cost proposal originals be included together and into one single sealed cost proposal package, or should each regional cost proposal original be sealed and labeled separately by region and then combined together into a larger sealed single cost proposal package containing all of these regional cost proposals?   
	For the purpose of this RFP, please submit the Cost Proposal(s) for each region in a separately sealed package that is properly labeled and combined in a larger sealed single Cost Proposal package.  The Cost Proposal packages should not be placed in the Technical Proposal envelope and vice versa.  You may put the individual and separated packages of the Technical and Cost Proposals in a larger package for mailing/submission.    

	14 
	Please provide the total contract funds paid by DCS during last fiscal year (7/1/15 through 6/30/16) to the current contract providers in each of the 12 regions for each of the service categories listed. (Broken down by service category if possible, or as a lump total contract sum paid per region if a breakdown is not feasible.)
	See Attachment C of this RFP amendment.

	15 
	Please provide  the total contract funds paid during the 1st quarter of this fiscal year to date (7/1/16- 9/30/16) to the current contract providers in each of the 12 regions for each of the service categories listed, or as a lump contract sum paid if a breakdown is not feasible?
	See Attachment C of this RFP amendment.

	16 
	Please provide the total number of new referrals made during last fiscal year (7/1/15 through 6/30/16) to the current contract providers in each of the 12 regions for each of the service categories listed? 
	See Attachment A of this RFP amendment.  This information was not available for some of the regions. 

	17 
	Please provide the total number of new referrals made during the 1st quarter of this fiscal year to date (7/1/16- 9/30/16) to the current contract providers in each of the 12 regions for each of the service categories listed?
	This information is not available. 

	18 
	What quality and continuity or care measures will the Department utilize to ensure that DCS regions provide timely subsequent month re-authorizations (when indicated) for these RFP services,  to prevent service delays and care disruption from month to month reauthorizations potentially  not arriving until days or weeks into next month of approved service?  
	These contracts are overseen by DCS program staff in Central Office (CO).  The DCS CO staff should be contacted whenever barriers arise that delay services.  Staff can facilitate a resolution with the regional leadership and fiscal when there is an issue with processing reauthorizations. 

	19 
	Please provide additional clarification regarding the requirement “Supervisors must be licensed clinicians with at least a Master’s degree and shall supervise no more than five to six (5-6) non licensed master or bachelor level staff”-  A) does this language mean that the contractual expectation is that licensed Supervisors for these contracts must be dedicated full time supervisors to Therapeutic Family Preservation and Reunification Services staff and service types, up to a maximum of 5-6 staff each?   B) Does a part time licensed Supervisor supervising up to 5-6 staff meet this requirement?  C)  Does a full time licensed Supervisor supervising up to 5-6 staff for these contracts, and who also has additional licensed clinical supervision responsibilities for other non-related contracts and/or staff, meet this requirement?  D) Does one part time staff count the same towards the Supervisor’s maximum ratio as one full time staff, or is full time equivalency  (i.e. one FTE staff  = two 20hr per wk part time staff ) used to determine the licensed supervisor to maximum staff ratios?
	Vendors must provide a licensed supervisor with at least a Master’s degree for 5-6 people as it is written.  However, the rule(s) set forth by the Health Related Board, for the licensed individual to supervise, should be followed.  A part time supervisor would not meet the requirement of carrying 5-6 staff to supervise.  A part time supervisor could supervise 2-3 staff.  The supervisor can supervise staff from other programs but those staff must be included in the overall number of individuals that the supervisor is supervising.    

	20 
	What is the anticipated Maximum Contract liability for the upcoming five-year contract period for each of the 12 regions for these RFP services?
	The Maximum Contract liability per region is unknown until the awards are announced and the contracts developed.

	21 
	What is the anticipated volume of referrals by region?
	The number of services per day is unpredictable and sporadic.  An anticipated number of families served per day, per service category and per region cannot be provided.

	22 
	What is approximate amount of 5-year funding for the program statewide?
	The Maximum Contract liability per region is unknown until the awards are announced and the contracts developed.

	23 
	Can the fee for service hourly rates be quoted differently for each contract year, or do the set of fees need to stay constant for the entire 5-year contract period?
	The Cost Proposal must be completed as posted in
the RFP.  See 3.  Response Requirements, 5.2. Evaluation Process and RFP Attachment 6.3. Cost Proposal and Scoring Guide of the RFP.

	24 
	What is the provision for such cases where the client is in custody in a home outside the counties specified in the contract geographic coverage?
	This would depend on each individual situation. 

	25 
	What is the required documentation for the client clinical records?
	A family service plan must be developed with goals, outcomes, interventions and action steps.  Each contact with the client must be documented and progress on the goals and action steps must be documented.  Reasonable efforts to contact clients should also be documented.  

	26 
	What data will be stored in TFACTS?
	As of now, that information is unknown.  However, if the agency requires information to be entered into TFACTS, training will be provided.  

	27 
	If a facility is not currently licensed as an outpatient provider, but is in process with anticipated completion prior to the contract start date are they eligible to apply?
	The requirement is to submit a license. Any facility is eligible to apply. 

	28 
	On page 8, regarding technical responses, can you clarify if the desire is one technical response for each region or one for the entity as a whole if multiple regions are being pursued?

	One Technical Response should be submitted irrespective to the number of regions sought after.  If the Respondent intends to bid on multiple regions, there are questions in Section A, Section B, all of Section C and the Cost Proposal (highlighted in yellow) that must have region specific answers.  Although you will submit one Response in the form of your answers, there should be a separate Evaluation Guide (beginning on pages 23, 28 and 30 of the RFP) for Sections B, C and the Cost Proposal.  The Evaluation Guides for each region must have the information at the top of the page completed with the page numbers documented in the designated area.    

	29 
	Section A.5.b.2 discusses that DCS will indicate timeframes for objectives to be achieved. Given that the requirement is for evidenced based programs to be used, which vary in length and duration of individual sessions, how will this be possible?  For an example, if an agency chooses a 16 week program, will this be considered in setting timeframes and authorizations for service including the number of hours reimbursed?
	Service needs are determined each month by the worker and the child and family team.  At any time it may be determined that a service is no longer necessary regardless of the curriculum timeframe.  The amount of hours approved is determined based on what is requested by the worker and what the fiscal unit feels is fiscally appropriate.  Whatever evidence based program the applicant chooses should be listed in their proposal and would be considered when choosing an agency.

	30 
	75% of services must occur in the home or other natural environments; can the other 25% be conducted through telephone and/or video conferencing methods?
	No, these services must occur face-to-face to count.  The other 25% is referring to formal settings such as court or offices.  

	31 
	Is the number of hours needed to meet objectives negotiable? For example, if the evidence based program requires 2 hours per week, will providers be authorized for what is needed to maintain fidelity to the program?
	The amount of hours authorized for a service is determined by the needs of the family, child and family team and the fiscal unit.  If a provider needed more hours to appropriately serve a family, they could request that, but it would not be guaranteed based on the curriculum the agency chooses. 

	32 
	There is a financial cost to maintaining 24 hour availability for emergency referrals.  How does the Department intend to cover this mandate?
	The contract is based on billable service hours.  There is no additional funding to pay someone to be available to work on an emergency referral.  They would be paid for the approved billable hours for the services provided.   

	33 
	Are units billed by hour only, or are quarter and/or half hours billable?
	Quarter, half, and whole hours are acceptable for billing. 

	34 
	Can you share current and anticipated usage of this program by region? What is the average number of hours per month anticipated to meet the needs?
	The number of services per month is unpredictable and sporadic.  An anticipated number of hours per month cannot be provided.

	35 
	What is the anticipated length of this service in months?
	This varies depending on the case and the needs of the child and family.  

	36 
	How does this service interact with Therapeutic Foster Care services?
	Children who are placed in Therapeutic Foster Homes mostly receive these types of services through those placement contracts.  There are some situations in which children placed in level two or higher homes would be eligible for services.  Each request will be considered on a case-by-case basis. 

	37 
	In the event there is more than one provider in a region, how is the distribution of referrals handled so that it is fair to all?
	Each region will be awarded one contract with one contractor.

	38 
	Is the authorization by service or total? For example, is it feasible to have an authorization for 20 hours of visitation and a separate authorization for 20 hours of FSS?
	The authorization is by total hours for the service.  It is possible to have 20 hours of visitation and 20 hours of FSS.

	39 
	Is the effective date of the contract July 1, 2017?
	Yes.

	40 
	Is there a mechanism for additional authorization if crisis needs require over 20 hours of intervention?
	Consideration will be made on a case-by-case basis.  

	41 
	It appears that there is no attachment in the RFP for an actual blank reference form in Section 6.2. Do we just use the sample form given? I believe it is page 33 thru 35 in the packet?
	Yes.  Please use the sample form given.



3. Delete RFP section RFP ATTACHMENT 6.2., Section A – Mandatory Requirement Items, A.6. in its entirety and insert the following in its place (any sentence or paragraph containing revised or new text is highlighted):

A.6.	Provide proof of licensure for immediate supervisors/key people, who the Respondent will assign, to meet the requirements under this RFP (no more than three licenses (one current copy each) per region being sought after), qualifying the Respondent to perform the duties of this contract.

 Attachment A

	
FAMILIES REFERRED AND SERVED IN EACH CATEGORY PER REGION 
FY 2016

	REGION
	Family Support Services/ Visitation Services/ Family Violence Services

	
	Referred
	Served

	Davidson
	Unavailable
	258

	East
	288
	238

	Knox
	239
	215

	Mid-Cumberland 
	895
	200

	Northeast
	99
	133

	Partial Northwest 
	78
	359

	Shelby 
	Unavailable
	285

	Smoky Mountain
	125
	98

	South Central
	Unavailable
	317

	Southwest 
	Unavailable
	100

	Tennessee Valley
	125
	110

	Upper Cumberland 
	Unavailable
	228



*The number of services per day is unpredictable and sporadic.  An anticipated number 
of families served per day, per service category and per region cannot be provided.  

Attachment B

	FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICES

	REGION
	VENDOR
	AMOUNT

	Davidson
	Camelot Care Centers, Inc.
	$ 54.00 per Hour

	East
	Omni Community Health, Inc.
	$ 65.00 per Hour

	Knox
	LifeCare-Sequel Care of TN
	$ 59.00 per Hour

	Mid-Cumberland 
	New Vision, Inc.
	$ 50.00 per Hour

	Northeast
	Families Free, Inc.
	$ 56.00 per Hour

	Partial Northwest 
	LifeCare-Sequel Care of TN
	$ 60.00 per Hour

	Shelby 
	Camelot Care Centers, Inc.
	$ 60.00 per Hour

	Smoky Mountain
	Omni Community Health, Inc.
	$ 65.00 per Hour

	South Central
	Camelot Care Centers, Inc.
	$ 50.00 per Hour

	Southwest 
	Health Connect America, Inc.
	$ 59.00 per Hour

	Tennessee Valley
	LifeCare Sequel Care of TN
	$ 62.00 per Hour

	Upper Cumberland 
	Health Connect America, Inc.
	          $ 59.00 per Hour



	FAMILY VISITATION SERVICES

	REGION
	VENDOR
	AMOUNT

	Davidson
	Camelot Care Centers, Inc.
	$ 54.00 per Hour

	East
	Omni Community Health, Inc.
	$ 65.00 per Hour

	Knox
	LifeCare-Sequel Care of TN
	$ 55.00 per Hour

	Mid-Cumberland 
	New Vision, Inc.
	$ 50.00 per Hour

	Northeast
	Families Free, Inc.
	$ 56.00 per Hour

	Partial Northwest 
	LifeCare-Sequel Care of TN
	$ 55.00 per Hour

	Shelby 
	Camelot Care Centers, Inc.
	$ 45.00 per Hour

	Smoky Mountain
	Omni Community Health, Inc.
	$ 65.00 per Hour

	South Central
	Camelot Care Centers, Inc.
	$ 50.00 per Hour

	Southwest 
	Health Connect America, Inc.
	$ 45.00 per Hour

	Tennessee Valley
	LifeCare Sequel Care of TN
	$ 58.00 per Hour

	Upper Cumberland 
	Health Connect America, Inc.
	



	FAMILY VIOLENCE INTERVENTION SERVICES

	REGION
	VENDOR
	AMOUNT

	Davidson
	Camelot Care Centers, Inc.
	$ 54.00 per Hour

	East
	Omni Community Health, Inc.
	$ 55.00 per Hour

	Knox
	LifeCare-Sequel Care of TN
	$ 54.00 per Hour

	Mid-Cumberland 
	New Vision, Inc.
	$ 50.00 per Hour

	Northeast
	Families Free, Inc.
	$ 56.00 per Hour

	Partial Northwest 
	LifeCare-Sequel Care of TN
	$ 50.00 per Hour

	Shelby 
	Camelot Care Centers, Inc.
	$ 45.00 per Hour

	Smoky Mountain
	Omni Community Health, Inc.
	$ 55.00 per Hour

	South Central
	Camelot Care Centers, Inc.
	$ 50.00 per Hour

	Southwest 
	Health Connect America, Inc.
	$ 54.00 per Hour

	Tennessee Valley
	LifeCare Sequel Care of TN
	$ 54.00 per Hour

	Upper Cumberland 
	Health Connect America, Inc.
	$ 55.00 per Hour



	COURT TESTIMONY

	REGION
	VENDOR
	AMOUNT

	Davidson
	Camelot Care Centers, Inc.
	$ 54.00 per Hour

	East
	Omni Community Health, Inc.
	$ 65.00 per Hour

	Knox
	LifeCare-Sequel Care of TN
	$ 20.00 per Hour

	Mid-Cumberland 
	New Vision, Inc.
	$ 25.00 per Hour

	Northeast
	Families Free, Inc.
	$ 30.00 per Hour

	Partial Northwest 
	LifeCare-Sequel Care of TN
	$ 25.00 per Hour

	Shelby 
	Camelot Care Centers, Inc.
	$ 60.00 per Hour

	Smoky Mountain 
	Omni Community Health, Inc.
	$ 65.00 per Hour

	South Central
	Camelot Care Centers, Inc.
	$ 50.00 per Hour

	Southwest 
	Health Connect America, Inc.
	$ 45.00 per Hour

	Tennessee Valley
	LifeCare Sequel Care of TN
	$ 25.00 per Hour

	Upper Cumberland 
	Health Connect America, Inc.
	N/A for the current contract



	FAMILY SATISFATION SURVEY TOOL

	REGION
	VENDOR
	AMOUNT

	Davidson
	Camelot Care Centers, Inc.
	$ 12.00 per Tool

	East
	Omni Community Health, Inc.
	$ 25.00 per Tool

	Knox
	LifeCare-Sequel Care of TN
	$ 2.00 per Tool

	Mid-Cumberland 
	New Vision, Inc.
	$ 2.50 per Tool

	Northeast
	Families Free, Inc.
	$ 30.00 per Tool

	Partial Northwest 
	LifeCare-Sequel Care of TN
	$ 2.00 per Tool

	Shelby 
	Camelot Care Centers, Inc.
	$ 12.00 per Tool

	Smoky Mountain
	Omni Community Health, Inc.
	$ 25.00 per Tool

	South Central
	Camelot Care Centers, Inc.
	$ 12.00 per Tool

	Southwest 
	Health Connect America, Inc.
	$ 10.00 per Tool

	Tennessee Valley
	LifeCare Sequel Care of TN
	$ 2.00 per Tool

	Upper Cumberland 
	Health Connect America, Inc.
	N/A for the current contract






Attachment C

	EXPENDITURES

	REGION
	FISCAL YEAR 2016
	1ST QUARTER FISCAL YEAR 2017

	Davidson
	235,770.00
	63,943.00

	East
	230,148.75
	36,693.00

	Knox
	246,435.25
	32,114.50

	Mid-Cumberland 
	147,250.00
	7,947.50

	Northeast
	120,908.00
	9,483.90

	Partial Northwest 
	128,210.00
	17,761.25

	Shelby 
	154,046.25
	46,100.00

	Smoky Mountain
	103,241.25
	30,063.75

	South Central
	227,850.50
	23,585.00

	Southwest 
	83,758.20
	30,737.50

	Tennessee Valley
	144,206.00
	19,843.75

	Upper Cumberland 
	180,345.50
	33,405.50
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